
Page 1 of 2 

Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, July 25, 2022, 6:00pm 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

Meeting called to order 

 Invocation given by Jody Hansen
 Pledge of Allegiance
 Approve Agenda
 Consent Agenda

o Approval of the July 11, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
o Bills
o Interim Bills

 For information
o June Finance Report
o Minutes of the July 18, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting
o June Sheriff’s Department Monthly Report
o June Fire Department Monthly Report
o Updated Zoning Board of Appeals Application
o WOW Award

 Communications and Correspondence
 Public Hearings
 Public Comments
 Guest Speakers

o Chad Doornbos, Superintendent of Public Utilities: 2021 Year in 
Review

 Action Items
o Planning and Zoning Coordinator Position and Job Description
o Resolution 2022-11: Handbook Update - Boots

 Discussion Items
o Trick-or-Treating Date

 Public Comments
 Board Comments
 Future Agenda Items
 Adjournment



 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

• Account: ACT_Guest 
• Password: ACTguest 
• File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board 

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 3 
 

PROPOSED 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

JULY SESSION 1st DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met at the Allendale Township 
Auditorium, located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, on Monday, July 11, 2022, at 
6:00 p.m. and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mr. Elenbaas. 
 
Present: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Hansen; Ms. Kraker; Ms. Vander Veen; Mr. 
Murillo; and Mr. Elenbaas. (6) 
 
Absent: Mr. Vander Wall (1) 
 
Staff and Guest Present: Sergeant Cal Keuning, Ottawa County Sheriff; Greg 
DeJong, Ottawa County Commissioner; Gail Roelofs; and Rebecca 
Wildeboer. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

 
BOT 22-125 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve the agenda of today as presented. The 

motion passed.  
 
BOT 22-126 Ms. Kraker moved to approve the following Consent Resolutions: 
 

1. To approve the Minutes of the June 27, 2022, Board of Trustees meeting. 
 

2. To approve the general claims in the amount of $191,689.98 and interim 
payments of $13,847.66, as presented by the summary report for July 12, 
2022.  

 
The motion passed.  
 

Items Received for Information 
 
1. Minutes of the June 20, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting 
 
Public Hearings- None 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Public Comments and Communications- None 
 

BOT 22-127 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 

 Guest Speakers 
Commissioner Greg DeJong provided an Ottawa County update including: 
progress on the Juvenile Justice Center construction. He thanked the 
Allendale Area Chamber of Commerce and Allendale Township for their hard 
work on preparing the Independence Day Celebration activities. He recapped 
some campaign highlights, and encouraged board members to review the 
letter in the Announcer submitted by John Shay, Ottawa County 
Administrator.  

  
 Action Items 
BOT 22-128 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve the hiring of Alex Schanck for the 

Substitute Library Page position at a wage of $13.00 per hour; Alyssa Evans 
for the Substitute Library Page position at a wage of $14.30 per hour; and the 
promotion of Sheri Christensen for the Circulation Assistant I position at a 
wage of $15.40 per hour. The motion passed. 

   
BOT 22-129 Ms. Kraker moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor to sign 

Resolution 2022-10, as amended; a resolution adopting a Vision Statement for 
Allendale Charter Township. The motion passed. 

 
 Discussion Items 
 Mr. Elenbaas presented a proposed request from 4th grade class members. 

The group is requesting the board switch Trick or Treating date to the 
Saturday before Halloween rather than the traditional October 31st date. He 
sought input from the board and indicated this may come to the board in the 
future for a decision.  

 
 Several board members provided comments and suggestions.   
   

Public Comments and Communications 
  Public comments were received from: 
 
1. Rebecca Wildeboer, AACC 
 

BOT 22-130 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

  
 Board Comments 
 Mr. Elenbaas thanked Rebecca Wildeboer and Elizabeth Szymanski for doing a 

great job with the Independence Day activities. He provided an update on the 
wage study results for the Planning and Zoning Coordinator position.  

 
 Ms. Vander Veen sought clarification on the resident correspondence from 

Chip VanderZwaag, submitted by email, and distributed to board members 
prior to the meeting. Mr. Elenbaas indicated rental inspection waivers are not 
possible per ordinance. She requested staff meeting notes be distributed to 
board members again. She inquired about Planning Commission meeting 
minutes that outlined mining regulations.     

 
BOT 22-131 Ms. Vander Veen moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:40 p.m. The motion 

passed.  
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 

 

















  

County of Ottawa 
 

Steve A. Kempker 
Sheriff 

 
Valerie L. Weiss 

Undersheriff 
       
 
 

Sheriff’s Office 
 Headquarters/Administration Correctional Facility 
 12220 Fillmore Street 12130 Fillmore Street     
 West Olive, Michigan   49460 West Olive, Michigan   49460 
 (616) 738-4000 or (888) 731-1001 (616) 786-4140 or (888) 731-1001 
 Fax:  (616) 738-4062 Fax:  (616) 738-4099 

 
 
 
 
 
Date:   07-11-2022 
 
To:      Allendale Township Supervisor Adam Elenbaas 
 
From:  Sgt. Cal Keuning 
 
RE:     Monthly Report (June 2022) 
 
 
The Sheriff’s Office during the month of June responded to 460 calls for service.  
 
Allendale Township Basic EMT and MFR units, with assistance of general road patrol responded 
to 55 medicals and 7 personal injury accidents.  
 
Traffic contacts during the month of June, deputies issued 71 total tickets.  
 
 
Coffee with the Lifelong Learners: 
 
Allendale Township deputies met with the Lifelong Learners at Sprinkles. The time was spent 
talking, sipping on coffee, and sharing stories.  
 

          



Speed Trailer: 
 
The speed trailer continues to monitor traffic in Allendale Township. The speed trailer monitored 
traffic on Bass Dr. near South Cedar, 92nd Ave. south of Warner, and Radcliff Dr. Requests 
continue to come in, and the speed trailer will continue to make its rounds in the township. 
 
 

 
 
Thank you 
 
Sgt. Cal Keuning 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



Total Number of Calls

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 400 356 322 420 396 405 435 440 501 501 425 376
2020 366 450 300 290 389 410 414 500 458 458 454 374
2021 396 395 463 416 516 433 450 475 512 520 407 436
2022 394 399 436 420 488 460

Total Tickets by Month

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 67 53 95 86 34 56 76 116 102 195 99 80

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Allendale Township Calls for Service

2019

2020

2021

2022



2020 84 151 78 33 64 68 72 93 70 63 63 72
2021 70 40 66 79 85 116 73 88 177 129 88 108
2022 93 104 149 114 90 71

Traffic Crashes 

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 62 49 32 31 20 26 29 30 30 65 70 45
2020 44 55 22 14 28 15 18 23 33 31 49 37
2021 37 29 28 27 30 35 28 31 34 43 36 43
2022 54 36 20 24 26 26

Allendale Township Traffic Crashes

0

50

100

150

200

250

Allendale Township Tickets

2019

2020

2021

2022



Medical Calls

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2019 54 52 55 58 66 66 53 61 67 65 50 61
2020 58 57 49 44 41 43 53 45 42 54 55 42
2021 46 32 48 41 59 35 37 60 41 64 42 48
2022 47 50 61 47 61 55

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Allendale Township Traffic Crashes

2019

2020

2021

2022

60

70

80

Allendale Township Medical Calls



Calls of Interest 2022

January February March April May June July August September October November December
B & E's 1 3 3 2 4 1
Larcenies 7 19 15 6 7 18
Shoplifting 0 1 0 0 4 1
Mental 7 6 5 15 10 15
Civil 11 11 8 12 5 8
Assaults 5 5 3 5 3 4
Domestic 26 13 17 20 21 25
Animal 8 16 14 18 30 28
Alarms 9 6 7 5 7 8
Traffic 19 33 35 34 40 39
Narcotics 2 0 3 1 0 1
Weapons 0 1 4 7 3 4

Calls of Interest 2021

January February March April May June July August September October November December
B & E's 7 4 1 9 4 1 5 6 5 9 5 2

0

10

20

30

40

50
2019

2020

2021

2022



Larcenies 8 6 6 9 12 8 7 12 18 13 10 12
Shoplifting 0 1 1 1 0 2 0 1 1 0 1 0
Mental 6 2 11 5 9 11 13 12 7 13 11 12
Civil 6 11 8 8 6 12 10 9 9 11 2 8
Assaults 4 6 3 1 3 4 6 2 4 5 2 4
Domestic 28 22 26 15 27 31 23 14 29 23 17 26
Animal 18 18 15 14 10 18 17 19 16 13 9 18
Alarms 4 7 9 8 6 7 10 8 5 13 9 15
Traffic 26 34 38 41 48 37 32 37 35 41 32 45
Narcotics 3 2 3 1 2 8 2 3 6 3 5 1









































 
 

July 18, 2022 
 
 
Township Board of Trustees: 
 
Last Fall our Department Heads were talking about our Golden Rule mentality and commitment 
to becoming an example of Government Done Right. In that discussion we developed the idea of 
recognizing our employees when they go above and beyond what is expected in their role. At 
each of our Department Head meetings we now ask if anyone on our teams has taken extra steps 
to live into this. 
 
In July, Shelly DeVormer was recognized for going above and beyond exemplary customer service 
at the library. On a cold winter day, Shelly noticed a patron who she knew from past jobs, walking 
outside in the library's parking lot.  This patron was walking in circles, and Shelly was 
concerned.  After getting permission from Mary to make sure this patron was okay, Shelly put her 
coat on and walked up to her and asked if everything was okay.  Shelly and this patron had a 
good conversation, and it was simply that she was lonely and needed to get out to go for a 
walk.  The fact that Shelly simply wanted to make sure she was okay, shows her compassion and 
empathy towards others.  When Shelly was recognized for this interaction, she simply stated, "it 
is just what I do."  You can clearly see, Shelly naturally lives by the Golden Rule. 
 
Shelly was given a framed award and Wally, our plush wombat 
"mascot," will be at the library until the next employee is 
recognized.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mary Cook 
 
Mary Cook 
Library Director 



ALLENDALE PUBLIC UTILITIES
2021 Year in review



DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL

SUPERINTENDENT: Chad E. Doornbos

Licenses: Water Distribution “S-1”
Wastewater “A, B, C & D” 

WATER SUPERVISOR: Garry Scholten, Jr.

Licenses: Water Distribution “S-2”
Wastewater “C & D” 

WASTEWATER SUPERVISOR:  Gary Nestle

Licenses:  Water Distribution “S-4”
Wastewater “B,C,D”



PUBLIC UTILITY OPERATOR: Rob Lamb

Licenses: Water Distribution “S-4”

PUBLIC UTILITY OPERATOR: Cody Brow

PUBLIC UTILITY OPERATOR: Mike Brummel

PUBLIC UTILITY OPERATOR: Ryan Vander Ploeg

Licenses: Water Distribution “S-4”
Wastewater “C, D”

PUBLIC UTILITY OPERATOR: Shawn Hoover



ASSISTANT MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN: Sally Chase

UTILITY FIELD INSPECTOR: Jon Currier

Licenses: Water Distribution “S-4”

LAB TECHNICIAN:  Tyler Vereeke

CUSTODIAL ASSITANT: Brent Hotz



OPERATIONS

The wastewater treatment plant is staffed from the hours of 7:00am to 4:00pm Monday 
through Friday.  The schedule for the part -time staff varies.  On weekends, one operator is on 
call and works both Saturday and Sunday performing daily required work which includes lab 
tests, recording meter readings, and checking on the many automated functions of the 
wastewater plant to ensure proper operation.  The operator is also available twenty -four (24) 
hours a day for emergency calls for the foll owing week. These emergency call-outs/after hour 
events can range anywhere from a Miss Dig to a very complex issue such as a lift station failure 
or a watermain break.  All of our critical points are monitored by an alarm system which will alert 
the on-call person via text and email to their phone. 

There are five major components of the water and sewer department.  They consist of 
the water distribution system, the wastewater treatment plant, the sewer collection system, 
construction projects and Miss Digs. I will discuss each of these in the following paragraphs in 
more detail.

First, the water distribution system consists of 69.5 miles of water main, the 
appurtenances, two water towers, two pumping stations and two pressure reducing valve 
buildings.  Three times per month water samples from various distribution points are tested for 
chlorine residual and taken to the City of Grand Rapids Lake Michigan Filtration Plant for 
bacterial analysis. For our valve exercising and hydrant flushing program, we have broken the 
township into seven quadrants.  Each year we attempt to complete one to two quadrants.  This 
ensures that valves and hydrants are working in an emergency situation.  We are also required 
by the EGLE to have a Lead and Copper and Cross Connection Control Program.

Second is the wastewater side of the operations. There are many things that are going on
here also.  We treat approximately 1.35 million gallons of sewage daily.  This is no easy task 
considering all the equipment involved and the maintenance that goes along with it.  In order 
for us to meet our discharge limits, we have to treat the sewage to limits set by EGLE.  On a 
daily basis we test for chlorine residual, total coliforms, pH, dissolved oxygen, suspended and 
volatile solids, phosphates, and biochemical oxygen demand.  As part of the treatment process, 
we also operate an Anerobic Digester.  We are able to generate biogas through this process to 
reheat the digester.  As part of our permit, we are required to have an Industrial Pretreatment

Federal regulations for wastewater that is discharged to our facility or under our permit.  Allendale
currently have two facilities under our Industrial Pretreatment.

A third component of our operations is the collection system for the sewage.  We 
currently have seven lift stations.   Each lift station has two pumps to give redundancy.  There is 
also 49.8 miles of sewer main that we are responsible for.  The Township is currently split into 
six quadrants and we inspect one quadrant per year.  This helps us identify any problems that 
may be occurring within the pipes and manholes.

Program.  This program allows us to monitor our industrial sites for compliance to State and 



Fourth, there is the construction aspect of the department.  We work alongside Fleis 
and Vandenbrink from the start of a project to the end of a project.  The work that is performed 
here consists of reviewing projects so they will conform to the Allendale construction 
requirements, inspection as the project is being installed, and final completion inspections to 
ensure that the township does not have to go back and do repairs on sub-par construction 
practices.   

And the fifth and final aspect of the department is the Miss-Digs.  This is the marking of 
our utilities so they do not get hit in the excavation phase of construction.  As part of this, there 
is the ongoing mapping of our water system.  This is done through GPS to pinpoint our utilities 
and get them onto the GIS system that we will be transitioning to.  Our sewer system is already 
in the GIS system thanks to the work done for the SAW Grant. 

 All of these elements put together keep the water and sewer department very 
busy.  I would like to thank the Township Board for their support during the previous year.  



ALLENDALE PUBLIC UTILITIES 

2021 IN REVIEW 
 

 2021 was another year of changes in the utility department.  In looking at the growth of our 
utilities, it was determined that we should re-evaluate our staffing needs.  It was determined that 
having a fifth operator would give us more flexibility with the changing staffing levels we have had over 
the last few years.  The Assistant Operator Position was put on hiatus for the time being.  We 
promoted Mike Brummel from Assistant Operator to Public Utility Operator and welcomed Shawn 
Hoover to the team as our fifth Public Utility Operator. 
 

The big news for 2021 was the completion of the administration building and the equipment 
storage building at the Water Resource Recovery Facility (WRRF).  These two buildings have given us 
the much-needed space for our staff and our equipment.  We would like to thank the board for their 
continued support through these projects.  The WRRF staff spent much of the year refining treatment 
processes and monitoring our supplies of PPE and chemicals.  With the supply chain interruptions, we 
have had to order our supplies and chemicals far in advance to ensure we would have it when 
necessary.   While looking at reducing the cost of our chemicals, we continued working with ferric 
chloride for our phosphorus and hydrogen sulfide removal and poly alum for secondary settling.  
Maintenance at the facility was generally routine with no major issues this year. 

  With guidance from our asset management program, we lined 3,214.7 ft of thin-walled truss 
pipe.  This lining will strengthen the pipe and extend its life expectancy.  We also began work on the 
park lift station and water tower area.  The lift station work includes a replacement generator, a new 
control building, and the moving of the controls from the bottom of can lift station to the new control 
building.  This will give our staff the protection from the weather when working on the electrical 
controls. A second part to this project is securing the water tower.  This entailed obtaining some 
additional property and new fencing in the area around the water tower and lift station.   We would 
like to give a special thank you to the DDA for their support in this project. 

In 2021 we wrapped up the refurbishment of the M-45 Booster station.  We would like to give a 
special thank you to the DDA for their contribution to this project also. Lead and Copper is still a focal 
point in the drinking water world.  As part of Lead and Cooper Program, we are required to do a service 
line inventory of our system.  This entails exposing the service line and taking pictures.  This project is 
to be completed by 2025.   As most of our system was put in after 1986, we do not have any lead 
service lines in the ground but are still required to do the inventory.   

The Township purchases fully treated water from the City of Grand Rapids.  This year we purchased 
753 million gallons which is a 4.45% increase over the year 2020.   In looking at the growth of the 
township over the last ten (10) years, we have seen the demand for water increase 27.6%.  This 
coincides with the approximate population growth of 25%.  Of the 753 million gallons of water that 
was purchased, 431 million gallons was returned and treated at the WRRF.  This reflects a 2.74% 
increase from 2020.  See Appendix A.  Appendix B shows our water purchased from the City of Grand  



Rapids since 2005, and then broke down to each month of the year.  This trending shows our 
continued growth, but more represents the seasonal trending over the year.   

Construction year 2021 saw a couple of new projects.  The projects included installation of 
watermain on 92nd Ave and installation of a short piece of sewer main at 48th and Lake Michigan Dr.  
The chart shown in Appendix C reflects the annual developer contribution to the overall assets of the 
Public Utility Department.   

In looking at water meters and customer accounts, it was reported that the water department 
installed 135 new meters.  With the interruption in the supply chain, we were forced to suspend our 
retrofitting program in lieu of new installs and repairs.   

In reviewing the financials for the department, the year 2021 saw an increase to our overall 
cash funds in the amount of $1,348, 481.  A CD with a value of $274,257 was added back into the 
operating fund with an increase of $1,074,223 from fiscal year 2021 budget.  The available cash on 
hand is $6,983,737.  As we continue working through our capital improvement projects, we will have 
funds available to pay cash for some of these projects.  A good practice is to have one year’s expenses 
in the bank.  We are currently holding enough in the bank to meet this goal.  At the end of 2021 the 
dept for water and sewer is $7,832,933 million spread over two water bonds at $1,361,521 and two 
sewer bonds at $6,426,412.   

In closing out 2021, we are continuing to plan for the expansion of the WRRF.  We are 
continuing to look for new and innovative ways to treat sewage and manage the bio-solids from the 
process.  The goal of the utilities is to provide safe drinking water to our residents and protect the 
environment through the treatment of wastewater. 

The safety program is continuing to stay strong as we strive to make Allendale Township a safe 
place to work.  We are satisfying all the requirements for OSHA required safety trainings.  In 2021 there 
were no reportable injuries.   Thank you to all of those who set up our trainings, hold us to a higher 
expectation, and everyone who follows the safety rules to make Allendale Public Utilities a safe place 
to work. 

Appendix E shows our current treatment process at the WRRF.  The second picture in the 
appendix shows the different sampling points.  Appendix F reflects the Nereda Process that we are 
working on for the new treatment process.  We will continue to refine the design over the next few 
years in preparation for Phase II of our expansion. 



Allendale Water and Sewer Flows

YEAR WATER (MG) % Change SEWER (MG) % Change
1987 150 115

1988 200 120

1989 220 130

1990 210 125

1991 205 140

1992 200 145

1993 185 180

1994 215 190

1995 220 200

1996 230 195

1997 250 198

1998 260 208

1999 300 237

2000 305 204

2001 325 210

2002 350 265

2003 360 290

2004 370 304

2005 475 305

2006 480 320

2007 520 315

2008 490 340

2009 495 350

2010 500 360

2011 545 371

2012 583 376

2013 552 383

2014 504 382

2015 530 377

2016 560 393

2017 624 406

2018 648 432

2019 656.607 1.31 444.5803 2.83

2020 719.944 8.80 419.1976 -6.06

2021 753.462 4.45 430.9980 2.74

APPENDIX A



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

YEAR

M
IL

LI
O

N
 G

AL
LO

N
S

ALLENDALE WATER AND SEWER FLOWS (MG)

WATER (MG)

SEWER (MG)



AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B



APPENDIX C

2020 System Total:                Watermain   = 363,945 ft 68.93 Miles
                Sewer Main   = 262,576 ft 49.73 Miles

WATERMAIN
Pipe Value per Foot      8"= $70.00 /ft 10" = $90.00 /ft

12"= $100.00 /ft 16"  = $120.00 /ft

Project 8" Value 12" Value 16" Value Project Total

Bill of sale 
or Record 
Drawings 
Received

2195 $153,650.00 $153,650.00 8/25/2021
610 $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 8/25/2021

$0.00 $0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Totals: 2,805 $153,650.00 0 $0.00 $193,650.00

SEWER MAIN
Pipe Value per Foot      8"= $80.00 /ft       15" = $130.00 /ft

10" = $90.00 /ft          18" = $140.00 /ft
12" = $110.00 /ft 21"= $155.00 /ft

Project 8" Value 10" Value 12" Value Project Total

Bill of sale 
or Record 
Drawings 
Received

354 $28,320.00 $28,320.00 12/4/2021

Totals: 354 $28,320.00 0 $0.00 $28,320.00

2021 System Total:                Watermain   = 366,750 ft 69.46 Miles
                Sewer Main   = 262,930 ft 49.80 Miles

BP

2021 Water and Sewer Main Installation Totals

92nd Ave Extension
92nd Ave Allendale Portion

ALLENDALE PUBLIC UTILITIES



WATER AND SEWER OPERATING CASH BALANCES

APPENDIX D

YEAR BALANCE
2009 $1,029,943
2010 $1,557,530
2011 $1,689,081
2012 $2,120,364
2013 $2,215,929
2014 $2,891,507
2015 $3,592,282
2016 $2,220,351
2017 $2,693,220
2018 $4,109,301
2019 $4,092,256 
2020 $5,635,256
2021 $6,983,737 

$1,029,943

$1,557,530$1,689,081
$2,120,364$2,215,929

$2,891,507

$3,592,282

$2,220,351

$2,693,220

$4,109,301

$4,092,256 

$5,635,256

$6,983,737 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

FU
N

D 
BA

LA
N

CE

YEAR

WATER AND SEWER OPERATING CASH BALANCE



APPENDIX E







APPENDIX F





             
 

                       Planning and Zoning Coordinator 
 

JOB TITLE: Planning and Zoning Coordinator 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning Department 
REPORTS TO: Township Supervisor 
FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt 
POSITION TYPE: Full-Time 
SALARY RANGE: A4: $19.47 - $27.25 / hour  
EFFECTIVE DATE:  

 
SUMMARY:  
The Planning and Zoning Coordinator provides in-house support to the Township Planner and the 
Zoning Administrator along with assisting customers who contact the Township office either in person 
or via telephone. The Planning and Zoning Coordinator also coordinates between contracted 
employees and Township staff to organize and keep track of current and finalized projects. This 
position will report to the Township Supervisor. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  

• Answer telephone calls and emails. 
• Coordinate with the Zoning Administrator. Provide administrative support in all Zoning 

Administration matters. 
• Coordinate with Planner to provide all necessary materials regarding proposed projects in the 

Township. 
• Accept payments for applications for review by the Planning Commission, ZBA, and CBA. 
• Maintain calendars for the Planning Commission, ZBA, and CBA. 
• Aid customers with questions regarding building, electrical, mechanical, and plumbing permits. 
• Help customers with Zoning Compliance permits and/or zoning issues. 
• Maintain files and Minute books for the Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA), 

and Construction Board of Appeals (CBA). 
• Maintain and update computerized ordinance files. 
• Coordinate with Assessing Department regarding land divisions, property transfers, or 

combinations. 
• Create mailing lists and mail Public Hearing Notices for the Planning Commission, ZBA, and 

CBA. 
• Create Agendas for ZBA and CBA. 
• Update Township website for the Planning Commission, ZBA, and CBA. 
• Serve as a Notary Public. 
• Serve as a backup for the Front Desk. 
• Coordinate all incoming and ongoing Planning Commission projects with the Board of Trustees, 

all departments, and contracted employees/services. 
• Collaborate with Public Utilities, Finance Department, PCI, Township Engineer, Township 

Planner, and Township Attorney. 
• Maintain records and coordinate with other departments for finalized projects. 
• Create and maintain Planning Commission meeting minutes. 
• Attend meetings as necessary: Planning Commission; Board of Trustees; Internal; External 



             
 

• Continuously review and update processes to better serve applicants and customers of 
Allendale Charter Township. 

• Review invoices relating to projects under review. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable qualified individuals  

with disabilities to perform these essential functions. 

REQUIRED SKILLS / ABILITIES: 

• This position requires logic, intuition, analysis, and judgement. 
• This position requires a willingness to acquire additional training. 
• Previous work experience or training would be helpful. 
• This position requires good writing skills, knowledge of spelling, punctuation and grammar, 

and some editing skills. 
• This position requires much contact with the public, responding to questions, sharing 

information, explaining issues and procedures. 
• This position requires providing advice, conflict resolution, problem solving and 

communication as a representative of the Township. 
• This position requires research and organizational skills. 
• This position requires knowledge of computers. 

 
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:  

Education:  A high school diploma or GED is required. College level computer, 
accounting, typing, and word processing desired. 

Experience:  Prior customer service or administrative work experience required. 
Minimum of four years Planning and Zoning experience required. 

Licenses:  A valid Michigan’s Driver License. 

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES:   

No supervisory responsibilities. 

WORKING CONDITIONS:  

Must be able to perform essential job functions with or without reasonable accommodations, including, 
but not limited to, visual and/or audiological appliances and devices to increase mobility. Most of the 
work for this position is performed in a normal office environment, working Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m.- 
5:00 p.m. 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS:  

Typical sitting/standing for the duration of shifts while using computers/blue light electronics, some 
lifting of various office supplies and equipment. 

TRAVEL REQUIREMENTS:  

Very minimal travel requirements, mostly local and within Ottawa County. 

OTHER DUTIES:   



             
 

Please note this job description is intended to describe the general nature and level of work performed 
in this job.  It is not intended to provide an exhaustive list of all skills required in this job, nor is it 
intended to limit the authority of the Township Supervisor or any Township manager or supervisor to 
assign or direct the activities of employees under his or her direction.  Duties, responsibilities, and 
activities may change, or new requirements may be assigned, at any time, with or without notice.   

By signing below, I affirm that I have received a copy of this job description, read it, and had an 
opportunity to have the job requirements, essential functions, and duties of this position explained to 
me.  

APPLICANT:   
 
 
_______________________________________ _______________________________________ ________________________ 
Name (Print)     Signature     Date  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Last Updated: 7/12/2022 

For Office Use Only:  
 
Received by:    ______________________________________ 
Date:             _______________________________________ 
 
 

Allendale Charter Township is an “at-will”, equal opportunity employer.  If a job offer is made, 
employment may be contingent upon the successful completion and passage of a medical 
examination and other appropriate background checks, which may include providing body substance 
samples (e.g., blood, urine, and/or hair).  We consider applicants for all positions without regard to 
race, color, creed, religion, genetic information, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, national 
origin, veteran status, age, disability, marital status, height, weight, or any other legally protected 
status under local, state, or federal law. 



             
 

                       Planning and Zoning Coordinator 
 

JOB TITLE: Planning and Zoning Coordinator 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning Department 
REPORTS TO: Township Supervisor 
FLSA STATUS: Non-Exempt 
POSITION TYPE: Full-Time 
SALARY RANGE: A4: $19.47 - $27.25 / hour  
EFFECTIVE DATE:  

 
SUMMARY:  
The Planning and Zoning Coordinator provides in-house support to the Township Planner and the 
Zoning Administrator along with assisting customers who contact the Township office either in person 
or via telephone. The Planning and Zoning Coordinator also coordinates between contracted 
employees and Township staff to organize and keep track of current and finalized projects. This 
position will report to the Township Supervisor. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  

• Answer telephone calls and emails. 
• Coordinate with the Zoning Administrator. Provide administrative support in all Zoning 

Administration matters. 
• Coordinate with Planner to provide all necessary materials regarding proposed projects in the 

Township. 
• Accept payments for applications for review by the Planning Commission, ZBA, and CBA. 
• Maintain calendars for the Planning Commission, ZBA, and CBA. 
• Aid customers with questions regarding building, electrical, mechanical, and plumbing permits. 
• Help customers with Zoning Compliance permits and/or zoning issues. 
• Maintain files and Minute books for the Planning Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA), 

and Construction Board of Appeals (CBA). 
• Maintain and update computerized ordinance files. 
• Coordinate with Assessing Department regarding land divisions, property transfers, or 

combinations. 
• Create mailing lists and mail Public Hearing Notices for the Planning Commission, ZBA, and 

CBA. 
• Create Agendas for ZBA and CBA. 
• Update Township website for the Planning Commission, ZBA, and CBA. 
• Serve as a Notary Public. 
• Serve as a backup for the Front Desk. 
• Coordinate all incoming and ongoing Planning Commission projects with the Board of Trustees, 

all departments, and contracted employees/services. 
• Collaborate with Public Utilities, Finance Department, PCI, Township Engineer, Township 

Planner, and Township Attorney. 
• Maintain records and coordinate with other departments for finalized projects. 
• Create and maintain Planning Commission meeting minutes. 
• Attend meetings as necessary: Planning Commission; Board of Trustees; Internal; External. 



             
 

• Continuously review and update processes to better serve applicants and customers of 
Allendale Charter Township. 

• Review invoices relating to projects under review. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable qualified individuals  

with disabilities to perform these essential functions. 

REQUIRED SKILLS / ABILITIES: 

• This position requires logic, intuition, analysis, and judgement. 
• This position requires a willingness to acquire additional training. 
• Previous work experience or training. 
• This position requires good writing skills, knowledge of spelling, punctuation and grammar, 

and some editing skills. 
• This position requires much contact with the public, responding to questions, sharing 

information, explaining issues and procedures. 
• This position requires providing advice, conflict resolution, problem solving and 

communication as a representative of the Township. 
• This position requires research and organizational skills. 
• This position requires knowledge of computers. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:  

Education:  A high school diploma or GED is required. College level computer, 
accounting, typing, and word processing desired. 

Experience:  Prior customer service or administrative work experience required. 
Minimum of four years Planning and Zoning experience required. 

Licenses:  A valid Michigan’s Driver License. 

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES:   

No supervisory responsibilities. 

WORKING CONDITIONS:  

Must be able to perform essential job functions with or without reasonable accommodations, including, 
but not limited to, visual and/or audiological appliances and devices to increase mobility. Most of the 
work for this position is performed in a normal office environment, working Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m.- 
5:00 p.m. 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS:  

Typical sitting/standing for the duration of shifts while using computers/blue light electronics, some 
lifting of various office supplies and equipment. 

TRAVEL REQUIREMENTS:  

Very minimal travel requirements, mostly local and within Ottawa County. 

 

 

 



             
 

OTHER DUTIES:   

Please note this job description is intended to describe the general nature and level of work performed 
in this job.  It is not intended to provide an exhaustive list of all skills required in this job, nor is it 
intended to limit the authority of the Township Supervisor or any Township manager or supervisor to 
assign or direct the activities of employees under his or her direction.  Duties, responsibilities, and 
activities may change, or new requirements may be assigned, at any time, with or without notice.   

By signing below, I affirm that I have received a copy of this job description, read it, and had an 
opportunity to have the job requirements, essential functions, and duties of this position explained to 
me.  

APPLICANT:   
 
 
_______________________________________ _______________________________________ ________________________ 
Name (Print)     Signature     Date  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Last Updated: 7/14/2022 

For Office Use Only:  
 
Received by:    ______________________________________ 
Date:             _______________________________________ 
 
 

Allendale Charter Township is an “at-will”, equal opportunity employer.  If a job offer is made, 
employment may be contingent upon the successful completion and passage of a medical 
examination and other appropriate background checks, which may include providing body substance 
samples (e.g., blood, urine, and/or hair).  We consider applicants for all positions without regard to 
race, color, creed, religion, genetic information, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, national 
origin, veteran status, age, disability, marital status, height, weight, or any other legally protected 
status under local, state, or federal law. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ALLENDALE 

COUNTY OF OTTAWA 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION 2022-11

Uniform, Outerwear and 
Safety Equipment 

Guidelines 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, 
Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Alle'ndale, Ottawa County, 
Michigan on __ � 2022, at 6:00 pm. 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The Township Supervisor advised the Township Board that the next order of business was the 

consideration of a resolution to amend the Personnel Policy. 

After discussion, the following resolution was offered by: 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Township Board recognizes that, certain amendments must be made to the Personnel 
Policy from time to time to address current issues. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Allendale Charter Township does hereby approve of the 
following amendment to the Personnel Policy: 

Uniform, Outerwear, and Safety Equipment Guidelines 
Employees that work in public away from the Township Hall need to be visible and identifiable by the 
public. If the Township decides, in its discretion, that a Township employee fits this criterion, the 
Township will provide the employee with a uniform. Employees shall be expected to treat Township 
provided uniforms or other clothing with reasonable care. 

Uniforms, outerwear, and safety equipment will be provided per departmental protocol and according 
to their respective replacement schedule(s). Please contact your Department Head for more information 
specific to your department Each department works with an approved vendor to provide necessary 
clothing and equipment and the Department Head may use discretion in authorizing the purchase of 
new uniforms, outerwear, and safety equipment. Each Department Head tracks purchases and 
reconciles with respect to their budget Uniforms, outerwear, and safety equipment are subject to an 
annual inspection which determines the necessity to purchase replacements. 

1) If applicable, clothing will be labeled with the Township logo.
2) If an employee loses an item that was supplied by the Township, the employee may be

responsible for replacing the item.

3) All items supplied to an employee shall remain at the Township unless the employee is on-call.

4) Work uniforms and outerwear may only be worn when the employee is on duty for the Township,


















	7-11-2022 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	JULY SESSION 1st DAY

	ADPACFE.tmp
	Sheet1




